E-25-99

E-25-102

E-25-103

E-25-106

E-25-107

E-25-96

E-25-97

E-25-101

II.

I1I.

IV.

Executive Committee

Brett Grimm - Chairman
Jury Commission Room — McKenzie Building
11 S. 4th Street
Pekin, IL 61554
Wednesday, October 22, 2025
*immediately following Risk Management*

Roll Call

Approve minutes of the September 17, 2025 meeting and September 24, 2025 in-
place meeting

Public Comment

New Business

A.

Recommend to approve 4t quarter 2025 payment to Greater Peoria
Economic Development Council

Recommend to approve County Trustee Resolutions

Recommend to approve employment agreement for County Administrator
Recommend to approve Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal (CAMA) License,
Maintenance and Support agreement with Devnet, Inc. and interested

Tazewell County townships

Recommend to approve Emergency Declaration for Justice Center water
system remediation

Appointments and Reappointments

A.

Recommend to approve reappointment of Alisha Dault to the Human
Services Transportation Planning Commission

Recommend to approve appointment of Matthew Weller to the East Peoria
Drainage and Levee District

Recommend to approve reappointment of Aaron Birky to the Hopedale
Fire Protection District



E-25-108 D. Recommend to approve reappointment of Cathryn Stump to the Persons

with Developmental Disabilities Board

E-25-109 E. Recommend to approve reappointment of Angie Lapsley to the Zoning

Board of Appeals

VI. Reports / Communications

VII. Recess

Members: Chairman Brett Grimm, Vice Chairman Michael Harris,
Russ Crawford, Jay Hall, Kim Joesting, Greg Menold,

Dave Mingus, Nancy Proehl, Greg Sinn, Max Schneider,
Eric Stahl



Minutes pending committee approval

Executive Committee Meeting
Jury Commission Room — McKenzie Building
Wednesday, September 17, 2025 — 4:01 p.m.

Committee Members Present: Chairman Brett Grimm, Vice Chairman Michael
Harris, Russ Crawford, Nancy Proehl, Eric
Stahl, Kim Joesting, Jay Hall, Dave Mingus,
Greg Sinn, Greg Menold

Committee Members Absent: Max Schneider
Others Attending: Mindy Darcy, Interim County Administrator
MOTION MOTION BY MEMBER HARRIS, SECOND BY MEMBER

CRAWFORD to approve minutes from the August 20, 2025
meeting and August 27, 2025 in-place meeting

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION

E-25-84 MOTION BY MEMBER HALL, SECOND BY MEMBER
HARRIS to recommend to approve County Trustee Resolutions
On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION

E-25-90 MOTION BY MEMBER STAHL, SECOND BY MEMBER
JOESTING to recommend to approve Polling Location Change
On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION

E-25-95 MOTION BY MEMBER CRAWFORD, SECOND BY MEMBER

STAHL to recommend to approve Road Use Agreement for Fast
Ave Solar, LLC

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED

Member Harris voted nay

w =



MOTION
E-25-85

MOTION
E-25-86

MOTION
E-25-87

MOTION
E-25-91

MOTION
E-25-92

MOTION
E-25-93

MOTION
E-25-94

MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER
HARRIS to recommend to approve Reappointment of Nic
Maquet to the Lake Arlann Drainage District

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER
HARRIS to recommend to approve Reappointment of Ed
Meister to the Emergency Telephone System Board

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER
HARRIS to recommend to approve Reappointment of Jeff
Stevens to the Emergency Telephone System Board

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER
HARRIS to recommend to approve Reappointment of Abigail
Hobbs to the Emergency Telephone System Board

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER
HARRIS to recommend to approve Reappointment of Michael
Kemp to the Emergency Telephone System Board

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER
HARRIS to recommend to approve Reappointment of Steve
Leitch to the Emergency Telephone System Board

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
MOTION BY MEMBER PROEHL, SECOND BY MEMBER

HARRIS to recommend to approve Reappointment of John
Dossey to the Emergency Telephone System Board

AN



On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Chairman Grimm recessed the meeting at 4:03 p.m.

(transcribed by S. Gullette)

aw



Minutes pending committee approval

In-Place Executive Committee Meeting
James Carius Community Room
Wednesday, September 24, 2025 — 6:29 p.m.

Committee Members Present: Chairman Brett Grimm, Vice Chairman Michael
Harris, Russ Crawford, Max Schneider, Dave
Mingus, Greg Sinn, Greg Menold, Nancy
Proehl, Jay Hall

Committee Members Absent: Kim Joesting, Eric Stahl

Others Attending: Mindy Darcy, Interim County Administrator
MOTION

E-25-98 MOTION BY MEMBER HALL, SECOND BY MEMBER

CRAWFORD to recommend to approve appointment of Glen
Gullette to the Zoning Board of Appeals

On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Chairman Grimm recessed the meeting at 6:30 p.m.

(transcribed by S. Gullette)

[0 ol



E-25-99
COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to authorize the
4% quarterly payment for 2025 per the agreement between Tazewell County and the
Greater Peoria Economic Development Council; and

WHEREAS, Resolution E-25-16 approved an agreement with GPEDC for twelve months
from January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025; and

WHEREAS, Tazewell County agreed to pay the Greater Peoria Economic Development
Council quarterly installments for the term of this Agreement provided that the full
County Board approves based upon quarterly review of GPEDC performance.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the recommendation and
authorize payment of the 4" quarter investment for 2025.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office,
Greater Peoria Economic Development Council, Finance, and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 29t DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman



INVOICE

Greater Peoria Economic

Peoria, IL 616021407

;Tazewell County Treasurer
Bill to

Chairman Brett Grimm
Tazewell County

11 S. Fourth St., Suite 432
Pekin, IL 61554

Invoice details

Invoice no.: GPEDC_2025-105
Terms: Net 60

Invoice date: 10/03/2025

Due date: 12/02/2025

Description

2025 GPEDC Investment - 4th Quarter

Ways to pay

BANK

View and pay

csetti@greaterpeoriaedc.org
Development Council +1 (309) 495-5910
201 SW Adams St www.greaterpeoriaedc.org

Total

GREATER PEORIA

Economic Development Council

Amount

$18,750.00

$18,750.00


mailto:csetti@greaterpeoriaedc.org
tel:3094955910
http://www.greaterpeoriaedc.org/
https://connect.intuit.com/portal/app/CommerceNetwork/view/scs-v1-d760619024d34717abb60b0d1b6543b9037fcf2ad5f34bcc9170f3315f72345ff1716164fd514667ad4ca44645ab59d4?locale=en_US&cta=pdfbutton

E-25-102

10/06/2025 Tazewell County Monthly Resclution List - October 2025 Page 1 of 1

Total County Recorder/ Misc/
RES# Account Type Account Name Parcel# Collected Clerkk Auctioneer Sec of Stale Agent Overpmt Treasurer
10-25-001 0725075E SAL DAVID ALEXANDER 13-13-09-205-020 8§38.00 0.00 0.00 88.00 482.19 0.00 267.81
10-25-002 Q0725077E SAL NATHAN R. JUDY 13-13-09-402-016 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 88.00 1,003.13 0.00 2,908.87
10-25-003 0725083E SAL MICHELLE HOLLENBACK 13-13-16-202-014 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 88.00 763.87 0.00 2,148.13
10-25-004 0725084E SAL REBECCA S. DUNKER 13-13-16-205-014 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 88.00 1,003.13 0.00 2,908.87
Totals $11,838.00 $0.00 $0.00 $352.00 $3,252.32 $0.00 $8,233.68

Clerk Fees $0.00

Recorder/Sec of State Fees $352.00

Total to County $8,585.68

Coemmittee Members



Tazewell County October 2025 Resolutions
Future Taxes for Properties Sold at Auction

ROUTE TO TREASURER

Dear Treasurer,

Please ensure the properties listed below receive tax bills no sooner than the payable date listed. Please direct any
questions to our office.

ltem# Date Sold Purchaser Future Taxes Due Beginning
0725075E 07/18/2025  DAVID ALEXANDER January 1, 2026 payable 2027

Parcel(s) Involved: 13-13-09-205-020

0725077E 07/18/2025  Nathan R. Judy January 1, 2026 payable 2027
Parcel(s) Involved: 13-13-09-402-016

0725083E 07/18/2025 Michelle Hollenback January 1, 2026 payable 2027
Parcel(s) Involved: 13-13-16-202-014

0725084E 07/18/2026  Rebecca S. Dunker Janu;ry 1, 2026 payable 2027
FParcel(s) Involved: 13-13-16-205-014

10/6/2025 Page 1 of 1

10



10/6/2025 Tazewell County - October 2025 Resolutions
Sale Accounts with Potential Equity

TREASURER: The sale accounts listed below may have some equity related to the principles stated in
Tyler v. Hennepin Cnty., Minnesota, 143 S. Ct. 1369 (2023).
We suggest you set aside the Potential Equity amount shown in the event a claim is made by the prior owner.

Our calculations are based on the limited information we have. We compare the County Auction proceeds to the final
redemption amount. There may be additional taxes due for the current year and/or forfeitures that were not part of the
criginal certificate. There may also be additional costs that we do not have in our data. These are only estimated amounts.
Any sale accounts not shown on this report do not have potential equity, meaning the County Auction proceeds are less

than the redemption amount. If no accounts are shown, then no current sale accounts have potential equity.

Auction Sale All County Redempticn Potential
Item # Parcel# Amount Proceeds Amount Equity

0725083E 13-13-16-202-014 2,912.00 2,148.13 1,045.24 1,102.89

1"



10-25-001 RESOLUTION 0725075E

(T

WHEREAS, The County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts therein, has undertaken a
program to collect delinquent taxes and to perfect titles to real property in cases in which the taxes
on such real property have not been paid, pursuant to 35ILCS 200/21-90, and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to this program, the County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts
therein, has acquired an interest in the following described real estate:

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP
PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER 13-13-09-205-020
As described in certificates(s) : 202000841 sold October 2021

and it appearing to the Executive Committee that it is in the best interest of the County to dispose of
its interest in said property.

WHEREAS, DAVID ALEXANDER, SHAWN RINKENBERGER, has bid $838.00 for the County's
interest, such bid having been presented to the Executive Committee at the same time it having been
determined by the Executive Committee and the Agent for the County, that the County shall receive
from such bid $267.81 as a return for its certificate(s) of purchase. The County Clerk shall receive
$0.00 for cancellation of Certificate(s) and to reimburse the revolving account the charges advanced
from this account, the auctioneer shall receive $0.00 for his services and the Recorder of Deeds shall
receive $88.00 for recording. The remainder is the amount due the Agent under his contract for
services. The total paid by purchaser is $838.00.

WHEREAS, your Executive Committee recommends the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, that the
Chairman of the Board of Tazewell County, lllinois, be hereby authorized to execute a deed of
conveyance of the County's interest on the above described real estate for the sum of $267.81 to be
paid to the Treasurer of Tazewell County lilinois, to be disbursed accerding to law. This resolution to
be effective for sixty (60) days from this date and any transaction between the above parties not
occurring within this period shall be null and void.

ADOPTED this day of

ATTEST:

CLERK COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

SALE TO NEW OWNER 10-25-001

12



-y

10-25-002 RESOLUTION 0725077E

{1

WHEREAS, The County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts therein, has underiaken a
program to collect delinquent taxes and to perfect titles to real property in cases in which the taxes
on such real property have not been paid, pursuant to 351LCS 200/21-90, and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to this program, the County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts
therein, has acquired an interest in the following described real estate:

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP
PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER: 13-13-09-402-016
As described in certificates(s) : 202100909 sold October 2022

and it appearing to the Executive Committee that it is in the best interest of the County to dispose of
its interest in said property.

WHEREAS, Nathan R. Judy, Krista L. Judy, has bid $4,000.00 for the County's interest, such bid
having been presented to the Executive Committee at the same time it having been determined by
the Executive Committee and the Agent for the County, that the County shall receive from such bid
$2,908.87 as a return for its certificate(s) of purchase. The County Clerk shall receive $0.00 for
cancellation of Certificate(s) and to reimburse the revolving account the charges advanced from this
account, the auctioneer shall receive $0.00 for his services and the Recorder of Deeds shall receive
$88.00 for recording. The remainder is the amount due the Agent under his contract for services. The
total paid by purchaser is $4,000.00.

WHEREAS, your Executive Committee recommends the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, that the
Chairman of the Board of Tazewell County, lllinois, be hereby authorized to execute a deed of
conveyance of the County's interest on the above described real estate for the sum of $2,208.87 to
be paid to the Treasurer of Tazewell County lllinois, to be disbursed according to law. This resolution
to be effective for sixty (60} days from this date and any transaction between the above parties not
occurring within this period shall be null and void.

ADOPTED this day of

ATTEST:

CLERK COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

SALE TO NEW OWNER 10-26-002

13



10-25-003 RESOLUTION 0725083E

LR

WHEREAS, The County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts therein, has undertaken a
program to collect delinquent taxes and to perfect titles to real property in cases in which the taxes
on such real property have not been paid, pursuant to 35ILCS 200/21-80, and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to this program, the County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts
therein, has acquired an interest in the following described real estate:

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP
PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER: 13-13-16-202-014
As described in certificates(s) : 202100918 sold October 2022

and it appearing to the Executive Committee that it is in the best interest of the County to dispose of
its interest in said property.

WHEREAS, Michelie Hollenback, has bid $3,000.00 for the County's interest, such bid having
been presented to the Executive Committee at the same time it having been determined by the
Executive Committee and the Agent for the County, that the County shall receive from such bid
$2,148.13 as a return for its certificate(s) of purchase. The County Clerk shall receive $0.00 for
cancellation of Certificate(s) and to reimburse the revolving account the charges advanced from this
account, the auctioneer shall receive $0.00 for his services and the Recorder of Deeds shall receive
$88.00 for recording. The remainder is the amount due the Agent under his contract for services. The
total paid by purchaser is $3,000.00.

WHEREAS, your Executive Committee recommends the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, that the
Chairman of the Board of Tazewell County, [llinois, be hereby authorized to execute a deed of
conveyance of the County's interest on the above described real estate for the sum of $2,148.13 to
be paid to the Treasurer of Tazewell County lllinois, to be disbursed according to law. This resolution
to be effective for sixty (60) days from this date and any transaction between the above parties not
occurring within this period shall be null and void.

ADOPTED this day of '

ATTEST:

CLERK COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

SALE TO NEW OWNER 10-25-003

14



10-25-004 RESOLUTION 0725084E

[NARAVA

WHEREAS, The County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts therein, has undertaken a
program to collect delinquent taxes and to perfect titles to real property in cases in which the taxes
on such real property have not been paid, pursuant to 35ILCS 200/21-90, and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to this program, the County of Tazewell, as Trustee for the Taxing Districts
therein, has acquired an interest in the following described real estate:

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP
PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER: 13-13-16-205-014
As described in certificates(s) : 202100919 sold October 2022

and it appearing to the Executive Committee that it is in the best interest of the County to dispose of
its interest in said property.

WHEREAS, Rebecca S. Dunker, has bid $4,000.00 for the County's interest, such bid having
been presented to the Executive Committee at the same time it having been determined by the
Executive Committee and the Agent for the County, that the County shall receive from such bid
$2,908.87 as a return for its certificate(s) of purchase. The County Clerk shall receive $0.00 for
cancellation of Certificate(s) and to reimburse the revolving account the charges advanced from this
account, the auctioneer shall receive $0.00 for his services and the Recorder of Deeds shall receive
$88.00 for recording. The remainder is the amount due the Agent under his contract for services. The
total paid by purchaser is $4,000.00.

WHEREAS, your Executive Committee recommends the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, that the
Chairman of the Board of Tazewell County, llinois, be hereby authorized to execute a deed of
conveyance of the County's interest on the above described real estate for the sum of $2,908.87 to
be paid to the Treasurer of Tazewell County lliinois, to be disbursed according to law. This resolution
to be effective for sixty (60) days from this date and any transaction between the above parties not
occurring within this period shall be null and void.

ADOPTED this day of ___ ,

ATTEST:

CLERK COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN

SALE TO NEW OWNER 10-25-004

15



E-25-103

COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Executive Committees have considered the following RESOLUTION and
recommends that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends to the County Board that
it hire Mindy Darcy as Tazewell County Administrator; and

WHEREAS, the hiring of Mindy Darcy is pursuant to the terms of the attached
Agreement.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the recommendation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board
Chairman, State’s Attorney and the Payroll Division of this action.

PASSED THIS 29" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

16



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this 30" day of OCTOBER, 2025, by and
between the COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, ILLINOIS, a body politic and corporate,
hereinafter called the “Employer”, and Mindy Darcy, in her employment as County
Administrator for Tazewell County, hereinafter called the “Employee”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Employer is entering into an employment contract with
Employee on or about October 30, 2025; and,

WHEREAS, the effective dates of said contract are to be October 30, 2025
through October 29, 2028; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises hereinafter exchanged,
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

(1) Period of Employment.  This Agreement shall be in full force and

effect until October 29, 2028, unless it is terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions
of paragraph (8), (14) or (16) of this Agreement.

(2) Employee Duties. During the period of employment herein

described, Employee shall perform the duties of County Administrator as set forth by
law, including but not limited to the laws of the State of lllinois, all rules and ordinances
of the County Board, the County Administrator’s job description, and such other duties
as the Tazewell County Board or County Board Chairman may lawfully assign to
Employee. In so doing, Employee shall comply with all such laws.

(3) Hours of Work.  The parties realize that the position of County

Administrator requires the person holding such position to work many weekends,
evenings, and other irregular hours. It is understood and agreed that Employee shall

work whatever hours may be necessary in order for her to fulfill the requirements of

17



the position of County Administrator, but in any event not less than forty (40) hours per
week.

(4) Employee’s Salary. The Employee shall receive an annual salary of
$170,000.00 for the period commencing October 30, 2025, and said salary shall be

paid in bi-weekly installments. A performance evaluation will be conducted by the

Executive Committee and the County Board Chairman after six months. Future
evaluations and pay increases shall become effective the first of December of each
year, consistent with other County employees. The Administrator will be given the
same annual increase approved by the County Board for other non-union employees.
Evaluations are based on the period August 1 through July 31, of each year.

(5) Performance Evaluation. The Executive Committee and the County

Board Chairman shall review and evaluate the performance of the Employee at least
once annually in advance of the adoption of the annual operating budget. Employee
shall be given an opportunity to discuss the evaluation with the Executive Committee
and County Board Chairman. Said review and evaluation shall be submitted for
County Board approval in accordance with specific criteria developed by the County
Board. Said criteria may be added to or deleted from as the County Board may
determine as they see fit. Further, the County Board shall provide the Employee with
a summary written statement of the findings of the Executive Committee and the
County Board Chairman.

(6) Vacation Pay. A maximum of one hundred (120) hours, or fifteen (15)

days of vacation leave may be carried forward from one calendar year. Any vacation
leave scheduled which exceeds five (5) consecutive work days must be first approved
by the County Board Chairman. Upon implementation of the Employment Agreement,
employee will accrue, effective upon employment date, per pay period at an hourly
rate, equal to four (4) weeks vacation. All vacation leave earned prior to the effective
date of this Agreement shall remain intact. Any vacation leave accrued under the

terms hereof and remaining unused, at the termination of this Agreement will be paid

18



in cash to Employee at such time in an amount equal to the number of hours of such
unused vacation leave multiplied by the Employee’s then current hourly rate of pay.
(7)  Sick Leave. Employee shall receive the same sick leave benefits
provided under the Tazewell County Personnel Policy, and all benefits earned prior to
the effective date of this Agreement shall remain intact.
(8) Disability Termination. = Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement

to the contrary, the Employer is hereby given the option to terminate this Agreement in
the event Employee shall, during the term hereof, become permanently disabled as
the term permanently disabled is hereinafter fixed and defined. Such option shall be
exercised by the Employer giving notice to Employee by registered mail, addressed to
him in care of the Employee at his current residence, or at such other address as
Employee shall designate in writing. On the giving of such notice, this Agreement
shall cease on the last day of the month in which the notice is so mailed, with the
same force and effect as if such last day of the month were originally herein set forth
as the termination date hereof.

For the purpose of this Agreement, Employee shall be deemed to have become
permanently disabled, if, during any year of the term hereof, because of ill health,
physical or mental disability, or for other causes beyond his control he shall have been
continuously unable or unwilling or shall have failed to perform his duties for a total
period of sixty (60) days, irrespective of whether or not such days are consecutive,
beyond the sick leave time and vacation time accrued. For the purpose hereof, the
term “any year of the term hereof” is defined to mean any twelve (12) calendar months
period commencing December 1 and terminating November 30, during the terms of
this Agreement. If Employee becomes permanently disabled then the Employer shall
have no obligation to Employee for the severance payment as described in paragraph
14.

(9) Other Business Expense.  Upon prior approval of the County Board

Chairman, the Employer shall reimburse Employee for other Employee business

19



expenses, such as, but not limited to, the following: air travel, taxi, auto rental, lodging,
meals, professional memberships (including ICMA, ILCMA, and NACO) and
subscriptions to the publications and registration fees for training programs or
conferences offered by organizations, or as provided in the County Personnel Policy.
Such reimbursement is limited to the amount budgeted by the County Board in the
administrator Expenses line item.

The Employer will provide Employee with a lap top computer and cell phone to
be used in performing his duties for Employer according to the same policies
applicable to other County Employees.

(10) Group Medical Insurance Benefits. @ The Employer shall offer

employee health, hospitalization, dental, and optical coverage in accordance with the
County Personnel Policy. The employer will make dependent coverage available in
accordance with the Personnel Policy. The Employer waives any waiting period for
enrollment.
(11) Other Benefits. There are 457(b) investment options available.
(12) Outside Activities. The ICMA code of conduct is to be strictly
adhered to including political neutrality. Employee shall not engage in any activity for

which he receives compensation without prior approval of the County Board Chairman.
Employee agrees that he shall not engage in any outside activity which may create an
actual or perceived conflict of interest. Employee also agrees to arrange the outside
activity so as not to intrude upon Employee’s ability to devote his full-time and
attention to Employer’s affairs. Employee shall sign a statement of no conflict of
interest and file a copy with the County Clerk when engaging in outside activities for
compensation. All work shall be conducted during evenings and weekends unless the
Employee is authorized to use personal or vacation time by the County Board
Chairman.

(13) Holidays. Employee shall receive the same paid holidays as are

afforded to other County Employees.

20



(14) Termination by the Employer. Employer may terminate this

Agreement at any time by a two-thirds vote of the County Board in favor of termination.
It is understood and agreed by the parties that Employee shall be an employee “at will”
and may be dismissed without cause. The termination of Employee is so specified in
the Title 1, Chapter 3 of the Tazewell County Code, Sec. 5.

(15) Severance Pay. Inthe event the Employer terminates this Agreement

and Employee’s employment under paragraph (14), the Employer agrees to pay
Employee twenty weeks severance pay in a single lump sum payment. Said Payment
shall be calculated by dividing the Employee’s then current annual salary. Any
amounts required to be deducted such as Federal Income Tax, FICA, State Income
Tax, and IMRF shall be subtracted from the lump sum payment. Employee shall also
be compensated for unused vacation leave in accordance with paragraph (6).
Employee agrees to accept these payments as liquidated damages in full satisfaction
of any rights, compensation, or other benefits Employee may have under the terms of
this Agreement or otherwise.

In the event Employee is terminated after being formally charged in a court of
competent jurisdiction with any criminal violation committed in his official capacity or
evidencing dishonesty and the Employer finds that Employee more likely than not
committed such offense then the Employer shall have no obligation to Employee for
the severance payment described in this paragraph.

In the event Employee is terminated after being found guilty by a court of
competent jurisdiction of any criminal violation committed in his official capacity or
evidencing dishonesty, or admits to committing any unlawful act involving personal
gain to him, the Employer shall have no obligation to Employee for the severance
payment described in this paragraph.

In the event the Employee fails to comply with paragraph 15 of this Agreement,
the Employer may choose to terminate this Agreement and shall have no obligation to

Employee for the severance payment as described in this paragraph.

21



In the event the Employer decides not to renew or extend this Agreement, the
Employer shall have no obligation to pay Employee severance pay as described in this
section.

(16) Termination by Employee.  Employee may terminate this Agreement

at any time by giving forty-five (45) days written notice to the County Board Chairman
and acceptance by the County Board of such termination.
(17) Eligibility for Benefits Afforded Other County Employees.

Except for the benefit categories indicated in previous paragraphs of this

Agreement, Employee shall receive the same employment benefits as are provided to
other County Employees.

(18) Renewal. The Employer and Employee may meet to discuss the
renewal of this Agreement at any time during its term.

(19) Amendments. All amendments of this Agreement are invalid and

ineffective unless reduced to writing and signed by all parties.

(20) Indemnification. Unless otherwise prohibited by applicable law,

Employer shall defend, save harmless, and indemnify Employee against any tort,
professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or
otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of
Employee's duties as County Administrator or resulting from the exercise of judgment
or discretion in connection with the performance of official duties or responsibilities,
unless the act or omission involved willful, wanton, or intentional conduct. Legal
representation, provided by Employer for Employee, shall extend until a final
determination of the legal action is made, including any appeals brought by either
party. Employer shall indemnify employee against any and all losses, damages,
judgments, interest, settlements, fines, court costs, and other reasonable costs and
expenses of legal proceedings including attorney fees, and any other liabilities
incurred by, imposed upon, or suffered by such Employee in connection with or

resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding, actual or threatened, arising out of

22



or in connection with the performance of his duties, provided such claim or claims
does not arise out of a claim for intentional conduct and shall not include punitive
damages. Any settlement of any claim must be made with prior approval of Employer
in order for indemnification, as proved in this Section, to be available. Employee
recognizes that Employer shall have the right to compromise or settle any claim or
suit; unless, said compromise or settlement is of a personal nature to Employee.
Further, Employer agrees to pay all reasonable litigation expenses of Employee
throughout the pendency of any litigation to which the Employee is a party, withess or
advisor to the Employer. Such expense payments shall continue beyond Employee's
service to the Employer as long as litigation is pending. Further, Employer agrees to
pay Employee only reasonable travel expenses when Employee serves as a party or
witness of Employer regarding pending litigation. Failure of Employee to immediately
notify Employer of any claim, or legitimate threat, of legal consequence known to
Employee, where the potential claim is against either Employee or Employer, may
preclude Employee or the claimant from any future monetary payment by the
Employer due to the claim and Employee may not bind Employer for settlement of any
such claims where notice to Employer was concealed. The parties acknowledge that
this indemnification provision does not extend to any contract dispute between
Employer and Employee.

(21) This Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon each of the

parties and their respective successors, assigns, and heirs as the case may be.
Employee shall not assign any of the personal services to be rendered by the
employee under this Agreement. Any such assignment shall constitute employee’s

written notice of resignation.

Adopted this 30th day of OCTOBER, 2025.

23



ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

ACCEPTED BY:

Mindy Darcy

24



E-25-106
COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County's Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to
approve a sister agreement to the previously approved Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal
(CAMA) License, Maintenance and Support agreement with Devnet, Inc. (F-24-13); and

WHEREAS, Devnet, Inc. has contracted with Tazewell County to allow for any
interested township to access and use the property tax CAMA system for an agreed upon
cost pursuant to the Tazewell County contract approved in F-24-13; and

WHEREAS, Tazewell County has entered into Intergovernmental Agreements for
CAMA software with interested townships in Tazewell County (E-25-65); and

WHEREAS, Tazewell County wishes to enter into this CAMA License, Maintenance
and Support Contract with Devnet, Inc. and any interested township situated within the
County to assist in the automation of property records and the provisions of tools
necessary to calculate property assessments in @ manner in which the County and the
township deem appropriate and cost-effective.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves entering into the
attached CAMA License, Maintenance and Support contract between Tazewell County,
Devnet, Inc., and interested Tazewell County townships and authorizes the County Board
Chairman to authorize said agreement.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office
and Supervisor of Assessments of this action.

PASSED THIS 29t DAY OF October, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

25



TAZEWELL COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS
Nicole Jones, Chief County Assessment Officer

11 South Fourth Street

McKenzie Building, Suite 410

Pekin, lllinois 61554-4206

Phone: (309) L77-2275

Date: October 22, 2025
To: Tazewell County Executive Committee Members

Re: Sister Agreement Contract between Devnet and Townships of Tazewell County

Hello,

I wanted to give you a brief synapsis of why we are doing another contract with Devnet Cama.

I reached out to Devnet to verify that all we needed to do was an Intergovernmental Agreement between
Tazewell County and the Townships, I was informed that this was correct. I proceeded to prepare the
agreement, the townships signed the agreement and on July 30, 2025, Tazewell County Board approved
the Intergovernmental Agreement for Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal Software (CAMA) with the

townships.

Shortly after this date, Devnet’s CEO decided to change their policy, and they will now require contracts
between Devnet and the townships of counties.

I sent this contract to Mike Holly to look over, and he informed me that I am good to submit this contract
to the Tazewell County Board for approval.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you.

Nicole Jones
Supervisor of Assessments

26



DEVNLT o 00O

CAMA License, Maintenance and Support
Contract for

Townships in Tazewell County, IL

2254 OAKLAND DRIVE, SYCAMORE, IL 60178
P: (815 89%-6850 TF:(366)4-DEVNET F: (815) 899-0020
www.devnetinc.com

27



Agreement For DEVNET Inc. Services

Table of Contents

Agreement For DEVNET Inc. Services.....cccoovvuvieviieciieeeie e
RECIEALS ... ettt
ARTICLE 1: DefiNItions....c..ceoveeieriieieeieniieieeieeiteie ettt
ARTICLE 2: Description 0f SEIVICES .......eerueerieeniieeieeiieeieenieeeiee e ees
ARTICLE 3: Joint Responsibilities .........cccccveeeiierieriiienieeieenie e
ARTICLE 4: TAZEWELL COUNTY Responsibilities..........cccccceeveeeuennee.
ARTICLE 5: TOIM...ueiiiiiiiieiieeieeee et
ARTICLE 6: Price and Payment............cccceeveeeiiieniieeciienieereesie e
ARTICLE 7: Ownership; Limited License Granted.............cccceevrieenieeeeenen.
ARTICLE 8: Confidentiality and Nondisclosure ...........cccccceevvvveerieeenneennne.
ARTICLE 9: WaITanty .......coocveeviiimiiiienieeieeeieeeeesreeeeere et
ARTICLE 10: Indemnification .........cccccevueeiiienieiniienieeieeeeiee e
ARTICLE 11: Changes.......cccceeeuveeriieeniieeeiieeeieeesieeesveeesaveesiveeesveesnaveeenes
ARTICLE 12: FOrce MajeUTE .......cceeueriiriieieniienieeie ettt
ARTICLE 13: Termination......c.c.ceeueereerieeniienieeiee ettt
ARTICLE 14: Cooperative Purchasing ..........cccccoceeverienienienienenncnieneene
ARTICLE 15: ASSIZNMENL ....cccuvvieeirieeriieeeieeeeieeeereeesveeeeiveeseveesneeeseseeenes
ARTICLE 16: MiSCEllan€ous ..........ccoverierierieriiniieienienieeieetesie e

ARTICLE 17: Entire AGreement ...........cccueeruieeiieeniienieeniieeieeneeeieesieeeveenenes

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL
28

Page 2



This "Agreement," dated September 1, 2025 ("Effective Date") is between DEVNET, INC., (DEVNET), an
lllinois Corporation, having its principal offices at 2254 Oakland Drive, Sycamore, lllinois 60178, and
TAZEWELL COUNTY, lllinois (TAZEWELL COUNTY), an lllinois unit of local government, having its
principal offices at TAZEWELL County Clerk, 11 S. 4th St., Ste. 203, Pekin, IL 61554.

Recitals

WHEREAS, DEVNET is in the business of providing software development to units of local government
and others; and

WHEREAS, TAZEWELL COUNTY desires to update and modernize its appraisal software system;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, DEVNET
and TAZEWELL COUNTY ("the Parties") hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1: Definitions

1.1 Acceptance
The term “acceptance” means the first date and time that the DEVNET Appraisal Software System
is delivered to TAZEWELL COUNTY, is installed on TAZEWELL COUNTY’s hardware, and is
certified by a representative of each of the parties hereto as being in full compliance with the terms
of this Agreement.

1.2 Application Error
The term “application error” means an error in an application program that causes it to fail and
terminate abnormally.

1.3 Application Program
The term "Application Program” means the software programs developed and exclusively owned
by DEVNET that will allow TAZEWELL COUNTY to operate its Appraisal database.

1.4 Customized Changes
The term “customized changes” means a program or system change specific to the needs of
TAZEWELL COUNTY and that no other current client of DEVNET has requested on or before the
date of acceptance.

1.5 Database Error
The term “database error” means an error or corruption in a database that causes an application
program to fail or to present inaccurate or corrupted data to the user. These errors can be caused
by hardware failure, operating system failure or incorrect configuration of database hardware or
software and are not caused by an error in the DEVNET Appraisal Software System.

1.6 Tazewell County Databases
The term "TAZEWELL COUNTY Databases" means the Appraisal data prepared and managed by
TAZEWELL COUNTY that are stored in electronic format and which are accessible by TAZEWELL
COUNTY’s computer system.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 3
29



1.7

1.8

1.9

Tazewell County Equipment

The term "TAZEWELL COUNTY Equipment” means the equipment owned (or leased), operated
and maintained by the TAZEWELL COUNTY. By way of illustration, but not limitation, TAZEWELL
COUNTY Equipment includes: access to mainframe, minicomputer, and LAN server platforms
where "TAZEWELL COUNTY Databases reside, and the communications equipment required to
link the TAZEWELL COUNTY Databases to any satellite location(s).

Tazewell County Software

The term “TAZEWELL COUNTY Software” means application software, database management
software, and operating system software that runs on TAZEWELL COUNTY Equipment and
TAZEWELL COUNTY Databases and/or other software all of which are owned (or licensed from
third parties), and maintained by TAZEWELL COUNTY (or TAZEWELL COUNTY's third party
vendors), not DEVNET.

Documentation

The term “Documentation” means User manuals, TAZEWELL COUNTY training literature, other
written materials that DEVNET normally provides, or will provide with the services set forth herein
and verbal representations made at sales demonstrations by authorized DEVNET personnel.

DEVNET Appraisal Software System

The term “DEVNET Appraisal Software System” means all of the application programs, source
codes, database definitions and documentation necessary for the purpose of processing
Appraisals. Such a system includes, but is not limited to, functions for processing Appraisals for
Townships.

Software Maintenance
The terms “software maintenance” means an ongoing process of modernizing, repairing and
enhancing an existing software system.

Software Support

The term “software support” means the ongoing process of providing services to the users of a
software system that allows them to make proper and efficient use of the system. These services
include user training, repair of data corrupted by database errors and answering user questions.

Hyperinflation

Hyperinflation is a condition of abnormally high and accelerating inflation that substantially erodes
the real value of the local currency. For the purposes of this contract, hyperinflation shall be deemed
to occur if the monthly inflation rate exceeds 20%, determined by the Federal Open Market
Committee, for a period of two consecutive months. Should hyperinflation occur, it shall constitute
grounds for renegotiation or termination of this contract to adjust for the economic realities imposed
by such inflationary conditions.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 4
30



21

2.2

23

24

2.5

26

2.7

ARTICLE 2: Description of Services

DEVNET shall provide TAZEWELL COUNTY for Townships the DEVNET Appraisal Software
System as described below for the fees set forth herein on the dates listed in Paragraph 2.4 below.

DEVNET shall develop, maintain and support the Appraisal Software System for use by
TAZEWELL COUNTY in the ordinary course of its business.

DEVNET shall provide its own development tools for the development of the DEVNET Appraisal
Software System. DEVNET will also be responsible for setting up a testing and development
Windows Server 2008 R2-2012 R2 network within its own offices for such purposes.

DEVNET shall supply the following modules in the DEVNET Appraisal Software System. As the
software develops, the list shall be updated and modified as priorities change. This list does not
include some of the minor functions of the system as they are intended to be included in the larger
modules.

Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal Training: (If Needed)

All training will be done on-site and be performed by one of DEVNET’s Subject Matter Experts.
Training topics will consist of the following:

e Replacement Cost Module
o Residential
o Agricultural
o Commercial
o Industrial Structures
Marshall & Swift for Commercial/Industrial and Agricultural
2019 lllinois Manual for Residential
Cost Table Maintenance
Sales Maintenance
Sales Ratio / Study Module
Land Appraisal Module
Multiple Regression Analysis
Comparable Property Analysis
Integrated with Property Tax Administration
Trending
Sketching
Income Approach

Both parties acknowledge and agree DEVNET does not provide professional advice related to the
determination of property value. DEVNET shall not be responsible for rendering decisions,
interpretations  or  conclusions  pertaining to  property valuation or valuation
methodologies. DEVNET's tools, software and related services are intended to solely facilitate the
users’ own valuation process. All decisions, determinations or judgments regarding property value
are exclusively the responsibility of the Client.

SECURITY. All modules shall contain sufficient levels of security to prevent unauthorized users
from modifying data in any way.

DEVNET shall provide maintenance and support that includes:

a. Software maintenance will include all State mandated law changes, all Department of Revenue
Administrative changes (such as changes to the Abstracts) or any new reporting requirements.
Software maintenance also includes all system upgrades of non-customized portions of the
DEVNET Appraisal Software System. Maintenance does not include the cost of any upgrades

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 5
31



to third party software. TAZEWELL COUNTY is not required to upgrade third party software
such as operating systems or database software unless failing to perform such an upgrade
results in application errors in the DEVNET Inc. Appraisal System. As part of maintenance
DEVNET will also provide documentation in an electronic format for the DEVNET Inc. Appraisal
System as such documentation becomes available. Maintenance also includes the correction
of any DEVNET Inc. Appraisal System software discrepancies that result in application errors.
As part of maintenance DEVNET intends to certify the DEVNET Inc. Appraisal System'’s
compatibility with additional operating systems as DEVNET determines these operating
systems are acceptable platforms for the use of the DEVNET Inc. Appraisal System.

b. Software support includes all training, and retraining of TAZEWELL COUNTY Personnel. It
includes the diagnosis and correction of errors that may occur in the database due to a
hardware or network problem. It includes telephone and on site support for major processes
such as printing Real Estate tax bills, printing notices etc. If any support is required during
weekends or after normal business hours, DEVNET requests that a 2-day advance notice be
given, so DEVNET can have staff available to help. DEVNET understands that any advance
notice may not be possible and as such we will provide the person or persons designated by
TAZEWELL COUNTY with pager and/or home phone numbers of DEVNET staff members.
Software support also includes telephone support for any "how to" questions that any member
of the clients staff may have.

c. Software support shall not include any customized changes to the system, after the system is
accepted by TAZEWELL COUNTY.

d. Undertaking enhancements as mutually agreed upon by the Parties at an additional cost to be
mutually agreed in writing.

e. DEVNET shall reasonably respond to TAZEWELL COUNTY’S phone calls by return telephone
call. However, there are may be times when the programmer is not immediately available. In
these isolated cases DEVNET guarantees a response time of not more than two (2) hours from
the time of the initial call. TAZEWELL COUNTY shall have the option to contact the project
manager or head of DEVNET’S support division to have the problem reassigned.

2.8 The design for the DEVNET Appraisal Software System must include all of the basic
functionality necessary for following the legal requirements to process Appraisals in the State
of lllinois.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 6
32



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

ARTICLE 3: Joint Responsibilities

The parties shall co-develop a TAZEWELL COUNTY Training Program to instruct TOWNSHIP
personnel in the use of DEVNET Appraisal Software System.

All training required under this Agreement shall be provided either (i) on-site at County facilities as
designated by the County, or (ii) remotely via virtual conferencing or other mutually agreed-upon
remote methods.

Product design, to ensure consistency of interface and operation of TAZEWELL COUNTY
Databases.

Technology planning, to ensure adequate infrastructure necessary to deliver any expanded
services.

Change control planning, to ensure orderly maintenance and enhancement of TAZEWELL
COUNTY Databases.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 7
33



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

ARTICLE 4: TAZEWELL COUNTY Responsibilities

TAZEWELL COUNTY shall take the steps necessary, including the activities set forth in the
following provisions, to enable DEVNET, in accordance with a mutually agreed upon schedule, to
develop, install, test and maintain the DEVNET Appraisal Software System in TAZEWELL
COUNTY's Databases.

TAZEWELL COUNTY shall allow DEVNET scheduled access to TAZEWELL COUNTY Equipment
and TAZEWELL COUNTY Software relevant to the DEVNET Appraisal Software System to obtain
the needed access to its software and equipment, in order to allow DEVNET to develop, install, test
and maintain the DEVNET Appraisal Software System in TAZEWELL COUNTY's Databases. Any
delay by TAZEWELL COUNTY in their performance of its obligations under this paragraph shall
extend all due dates and maintenance obligations of DEVNET herein by a like amount of time.

TAZEWELL COUNTY shall take all necessary actions in order to allow DEVNET scheduled access
to the TAZEWELL Software and TAZEWELL Equipment seven days a week, 24 hours a day, if
possible, when DEVNET determines that such access is required by DEVNET and it is mutually
agreed by TAZEWELL COUNTY. Any delay by TAZEWELL COUNTY in their performance of its
obligations under this paragraph shall extend all due dates and maintenance obligations of
DEVNET herein by a like amount of time. DEVNET also requires scheduled access seven days a
week, 24 hours a day to TAZEWELL COUNTY Appraisal databases and Appraisal servers via
modem or Internet connection.

TAZEWELL COUNTY shall provide guidelines to DEVNET regarding use of information contained
in the TAZEWELL Databases and such other information as DEVNET may require to perform its
work as described in this Agreement. Any delay by TAZEWELL COUNTY in their performance of
its obligations under this paragraph shall extend all due dates and maintenance obligations of
DEVNET herein by a like amount of time.

TAZEWELL COUNTY shall allow DEVNET to use TAZEWELL COUNTY’S name in promoting
DEVNET to potential users and other customers and will allow DEVNET to use, copies obtained at
DEVNET'’S expense at a time convenient to TAZEWELL COUNTY, the TAZEWELL Databases for
demonstration of the DEVNET Appraisal Software System to potential users and other customers.
Notice of this paragraph shall follow the provisions of Paragraph 16.1 herein.

If TAZEWELL COUNTY makes modifications to its hardware and/or software (including operating
systems) that are incompatible with the DEVNET Appraisal Software System, efforts by DEVNET
to make necessary revisions due to such change(s) will be billable to TAZEWELL COUNTY at
DEVNET’s then-current rates for time and materials. Any delay by TAZEWELL COUNTY in their
performance of its obligations under this paragraph shall extend all due dates and maintenance
obligations of DEVNET herein by a like amount of time.

On or before the commencement of work to be performed by DEVNET pursuant to this Agreement,
TAZEWELL COUNTY shall obtain and have in full operation the following hardware for installation
and operation of the DEVNET Appraisal Software System:

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 8
34



Hardware Requirements for DEVNET Products

Hardware may be purchased from any third-party vendor of the County’s choice. Note that the County or
third-party vendor is responsible for deployment of the server(s) and all required third-party software,
including the Active Directory/domain and SQL Server, unless DEVNET is contracted to deploy the server
hardware and software.

The following specifications assume a single SQL and file server environment. For an environment in
which the DEVNET applications do not reside on the SQL server, these specifications apply to the SQL
server.

CAMA and tax analytics in the DEVNET system use the SQL Server R component.

e Clients up to 50,000 parcels can deploy SQL R in-database as a single server solution.

e Clients with 50,000-100,000 parcels may be able to deploy a single server SQL R in-database
solution depending on usage of the analytics.

e Clients with more than 100,000 must deploy a separate standalone R server.

Note: SQL R in-database cannot be deployed on a SQL cluster; therefore, an SQL cluster must deploy
the standalone R server

If the Application, Image/Document, and Sketch files are stored on a separate server or NAS, the file 1/0
performance of this alternative must be equivalent to the server specifications described in this document.

The Marshall & Swift cost manual requires a Microsoft IIS instance.

These specifications are for a physical server to support the DEVNET solution.

SQL Server Specifications

Minimum: Less than 100,000 parcels and less than 40 users

2.00+ GHz 8-Core processor
32-64 GB RAM

300 GB hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS drives for
Windows OS, SQL Server Application, and Virtual Memory file -

300-600 GB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS
drives for SQL Data, separate array for the SQL log files may be recommended'?

1 TB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS drives for
Application, Image/Document, and Sketch files'?

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Tape/disk or other backup solution

High-speed internet access

VPN remote access

Quad Teamed 1 Gb ethernet adapters

N+1 redundant cooling®

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 9
35



N+1 redundant power?

Uninterruptible power supply*

Windows Server 2016/2019 Standard Edition®
Microsoft SQL Server 2017/2019 Standard Edition®
Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

Minimum: Less than 200,000 parcels and less than 60 users

2.00+ GHz Dual 8-Core processor
64-128 GB RAM

300+ GB hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS drives for
Windows OS, SQL Server Application, and Virtual Memory file'-?

900 GB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS drives
for SQL Data, separate array for the SQL log files may be recommended?2

1-2 TB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS drives for
Application, Image/Document, and Sketch files'?

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Tape/disk or other backup solution

High-speed internet access

VPN remote access

Quad Teamed 1 Gb ethernet adapters

N+1 redundant cooling®

N+1 redundant power?

Uninterruptible power supply*

Windows Server 2016/2019 Standard Edition®
Microsoft SQL Server 2017/2019 Standard Edition®
Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

Standalone R Server Minimum Specifications

Minimum (May be required if more than 100,000 parcels, required if more than 200,000 parcels)

2.00 GHz 8-core processor

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 10
36



32 GB RAM

300+ GB hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 12G SAS drives for
Windows OS, R Server Application, and Virtual Memory file?

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Tape/disk or other backup solution

High-speed internet access

VPN remote access

Dual-teamed 1 Gb ethernet adapters

N+1 redundant cooling?®

N+1 redundant power?

Uninterruptible power supply*

Windows Server 2016/2019 Standard Edition®

Microsoft SQL Server 2017/2019 Standard Edition R component®

Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

" The storage space required may vary depending on the number of parcels, images, sketches, and documents.
Additionally, the amount of historical information added will impact the storage requirements.

2 Clients may substitute the recommended RAID levels for alternative RAID levels or storage methods such as a SAN
as long as they provide the comparable redundancy and performance. The lowest server specifications provided
above will provide sustained disk 1/0 of 250MB/s based on Windows file read write testing. The highest specifications
will provide sustained disk I/O of 450MB/s based on Windows file read write testing.

3 Clients can substitute an alternative as long as they provide the same level of redundancy.

4 Client do not need a UPS-specific to this server as long as the solution utilized can provide sufficient runtime and
graceful shutdown of the server.

5 While older Windows and SQL server versions are supported in select situations, some features require SQL Server
2017 or newer. DEVNET recommends using Windows Server 2019 standard edition and SQL Server 2017or newer
standard edition.

Server Virtualization

DEVNET does not recommend a virtual Microsoft SQL Database server.

If a virtual environment is utilized, the virtual server must provide the same sustained performance as the
recommended physical hardware.

The most critical performance component is disk I/O. The virtual SQL server must provide sustained
performance equivalent to the recommended physical server while other guest virtual servers on the
same physical server are under load. Note that unlike other applications, SQL is not very tolerant of
latency.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 11
37



Workstation Specifications

2+ GHz single core processor
8 GB RAM
256 GB+ hard drive

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

19" standard width or 22” widescreen monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Windows 10 Pro/Ent
100/1000 Mb ethernet adapter

Minimum Mouse
Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

If EdgeMaps is used on the workstation, a video graphics chip set with support
for the following is required:

e 64 MB video

e OpenGL version 2.0 or higher, and Shader Model 3.0 or higher

e DirectX 11 with Direct3D feature level 9_3

e DirectX 11 hardware rendering preferred

2.2+ GHz dual core processor
16 GB RAM
256 GB+ hard drive

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

19" standard width or 22” widescreen monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Windows 10 Pro/Ent

1 Gb ethernet adapter

Recommended Mouse
Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

If EdgeMaps is used on the workstation, a video graphics chip set with support
for the following is required:
e 256+ MB video memory

e OpenGL version 2.0 or higher, and Shader Model 3.0 or higher
e DirectX 11 with Direct3D feature level 9_3
e DirectX 11 hardware rendering preferred
DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 12

38



Printers
DEVNET applications are compatible with most laser printers.

Receipt/Slip Printer

DEVNET applications can print receipts to either a laser printer or receipt printer. Receipt/slip printers
compatible with the DEVNET applications must have a Windows driver that supports the printer’s
functions and paper type. If slip/check endorsement printing and/or cash drawers will be used, receipt/slip
printer driver must support slip wait and cash drawer open via settings in the driver. DEVNET applications
are compatible with Epson TM-U675 Receipt/Slip/Validation printer. DEVNET has also successfully
worked with other Epson printers that use the EPSON Advanced Print Driver.

Barcode Reader

Barcode reader must read Code 39 and have the ability to add a prefix and suffix character (depending
on the client barcode configuration). Additionally, the barcode reader must be configured to omit carriage
return and line feed.

DEVNET recommends the Honeywell Voyager Series bar code reader.

Document Scanning
The DEVNET application can interface with scanners that provide a fully TWAIN compliant driver.

DEVNET recommends Fujitsu scanners for use with its imaging applications. When imaging is used within
DEVNET applications, one or more licenses of Lead Tools imaging toolkit are required. The Lead Tools
software can be provided with the installation of DEVNET software applications.

Check Scanning
The DEVNET application can interface with scanners that provide a fully TWAIN-compliant driver. DEVNET
recommends the Epson Capture One and Epson TM-S2000 scanners.

Remote Desktop/Terminal Services Server Specifications and General Requirements
(Used remote access to the DEVNET desktop application)

General Requirements

Obtain sufficient Remote Desktop/Terminal Services Client Access Licenses (CAL) and sufficient
Windows User CALs.

Obtain sufficient licensing for third-party software such as Lead Tools and Apex.

Enable either direct or VPN access to the server for the end users. The access method must allow the
end users to make the necessary RDP connection to the server. Clients also may use the terminal
services web facility and or the Remote Desktop Web Service to enable full desktop or application
access. Implementation of the web facility will require installation of the necessary components on an
[IS-based web server. The resource requirements for the web facility are minimal.

Provide sufficient Internet connectivity for the desired number of users. This can vary from 16-120
KB/s/session depending on resolution, color level, Server OS version, Client RDP version, and other
factors. Optimally, the client would use 16-50 KB/s/session. The actual consumption will even vary
during a session

Implement a backup solution. Although no data resides on the server, a backup solution will provide a
fast recovery with the minimal setup work. DEVNET recommends Symantec System Recovery Server
Edition.

Implement sufficient security policies to ensure the reliability of the server and prevent access to any
unnecessary resources by the remote end users. The server should be part of an Active Directory in
order to allow the sufficient control over the policies on the server.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 13
39



Install an appropriately configured antivirus on the Terminal/Remote Desktop server.

For more detailed information regarding implementation, bandwidth consumption, server/end user
requirements, and security policies, refer to the related articles at Microsoft.

Terminal Server Minimum - depending on use, up to 10 remote clients

2.00 GHz Quad Core Processor

32+ GB RAM

*300+ GB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array (10K 3G SAS drives
preferred)

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

1 Gb ethernet adapter

N+1 redundant cooling

N+1 redundant power

Uninterruptible power supply

Windows Server 2016/2019 Standard Edition

Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

Terminal Server Recommended - depending on use, up to 10 remote clients

3.00 GHz Quad-Core Processor

32+ GB RAM

*300+ GB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array (10K 6G SAS drives
preferred)

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

1 Gb ethernet adapter

N+1 redundant cooling

N+1 redundant power

Uninterruptible power supply

Windows Server 2016/2019 Standard Edition

Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 14
40



Terminal Server Minimum - depending on use, 10-30 remote clients

Dual 2.00+ GHz Quad-Core Processor

64+ GB RAM

*300+ GB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array (10K 6G SAS drives

preferred)

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Dual Teamed 1 Gb ethernet adapter

N+1 redundant cooling

N+1 redundant power

Uninterruptible power supply

Windows Server 2016/2019 Standard Edition

Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

Terminal Server Recommended - depending on use, 10-30 remote clients

Dual 3.00+ GHz Quad-Core Processor

96+ GB RAM

*300+ GB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array (10K 6G SAS drives

preferred)

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

Quad Teamed 1 Gb ethernet adapter

N+1 redundant cooling

N+1 redundant power

Uninterruptible power supply

Windows Server 2016/2019 Standard Edition

Microsoft SQL Native Client

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.7.2

Microsoft Visual C++ 2015-2019 Redistributable

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

41

Page 15



Terminal Services/Citrix Remote User Workstation Requirements

2.0+ GHz single core processor

4 GB RAM

256 GB+ hard drive

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

19" standard width or 22” widescreen monitor capable of 1280 x 1024

Windows Minimum resolution

Windows 10

100/1000 Mb ethernet adapter

Mouse

Remote Desktop Connection Client 6.1/7 or newer

2.0+ GHz dual core processor (or better)

8 GB RAM
256 GB+ hard drive

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution

19" standard width or 22” widescreen monitor capable of 1280 x 1024

Windows Preferred resolution

Windows 10 Professional

100/1000 Mb ethernet adapter

Mouse

Remote Desktop Connection Client 6.1/7 or newer

Remote Desktop Connection client compatible with client server version

Non-Windows Platforms | appje Mac end users should use OS X 10.5.8 or later and Microsoft

Remote Desktop Connection Client for Mac 2.1.1 or newer

End User Printing Support

Only printers with drivers support for a terminal server/Citrix environment should be used.

In some cases, other printers can be used; however, this can cause serious problems on the server.

The end user workstation and the server should be using driver version/type. As always, DEVNET
recommends that the PostScript driver be used where possible.

DEVNET recommends using a consistent printer make and/or model to ensure that printable reports
and forms are printed consistently across all end users. Using a universal driver for several models of a
specific manufacture’s printer models usually allows some choice in the printers while ensuring the
printed output consistency.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 16
42




Remote Scanning Support

Currently, Windows does not natively support TWAIN scanning.

There are a number of third-party applications that provide this functionality; however, DEVNET has
not tested any of these with DEVNET applications.

Scanned documents and camera photos saved on the end user workstation can be imported into the
DEVNET system from an end user workstation drive mapped in the remote session.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 17
43




ARTICLE 5: Term

5.1 The initial term of this agreement shall be five (5) years from the date hereof subject to Article 13.

Payment and Reimbursement
The County shall be solely responsible for payment to DEVNET Inc. for all services provided
under this Agreement. The Townships shall reimburse the County for their respective shares of
such costs pursuant to arrangements made between the County and the Townships. DEVNET
Inc. shall have no obligation to seek payment or reimbursement directly from the Townships. The
County’s obligation to pay DEVNET Inc. shall be absolute and unconditional and shall not be
affected, delayed, or excused by any failure or delay of the Townships to reimburse the County.

ARTICLE 6: Price and Payment

6.1 The payment schedule set forth herein is priced over the following five years, payable yearly,

effective from the date of execution of this Agreement.

FONDULAC TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
FONDULAC TOWNSHIP under this Agreement,
TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

TAZEWELL COUNTY for FONDULAC

Fondulac Township
September | September 1, | September 1, | September 1, | September
1,2025 2026 2027 2028 1,2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 $260.00 $260.00 $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 |  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 $760.00 $760.00 $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

44

Page 18




WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for WASHINGTON
TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

Washington Township
September | September | September | September | September
1,2025 1,2026 1,2027 1,2028 1, 2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image Licenses
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

45

Page 19



PEKIN TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for PEKIN
TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for PEKIN TOWNSHIP shall pay to
DEVNET the sum of $9,135.00 payable as follows:

Pekin Township
September | September | September | September | September
1, 2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1, 2028 1,2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(3) Apex Sketch License | $1,965.00 | $780.00 | $780.00 | $780.00 | $780.00
(3) Lead Tools-View $300.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image Licenses
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $4,015.00 | $1,280.00 | $1,280.00 | $1,280.00 | $1,280.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

46

Page 20



GROVELAND TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
GROVELAND TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for GROVELAND

TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

Groveland Township
September | September | September | September | September
1,2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1,2028 1,2029
Augu-st 3, Augu-st 3, Augu-st 3, Augu-st A, Augu-st 3N,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image Licenses
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

47

Page 21



MORTON TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
MORTON TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for MORTON TOWNSHIP
shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $7,340.00 payable as follows:

Morton Township
September | September | September | September | September
1,2025 1, 2026 1,2027 1,2028 1,2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(2) Apex Sketch License | $1,310.00 | $520.00 | $520.00 | $520.00 | $520.00
(2) Lead Tools-View $200.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 |  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $3,260.00 | $1,020.00 | $1,020.00 | $1,020.00 | $1,020.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

48

Page 22



DEER CREEK TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for DEER
CREEK TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for DEER CREEK TOWNSHIP
shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

Deer Creek Township
September | September | September | September | September
1,2025 1,2026 1,2027 1,2028 1,2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

49

Page 23



SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for SPRING LAKE
TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

Spring Lake Township
September | September | September | September | September
1, 2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1, 2028 1, 2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

50

Page 24



CINCINNATI TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
CINCINNATI TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for CINCINNATI
TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $7,340.00 payable as follows:

Cincinnati Township
September | September | September | September | September
1, 2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1, 2028 1, 2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(2) Apex Sketch License | $1,310.00 | $520.00 | $520.00 | $520.00 | $520.00
(2) Lead Tools-View $200.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 |  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $3,260.00 | $1,020.00 | $1,020.00 | $1,020.00 | $1,020.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

51

Page 25



ELM GROVE TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for ELM
GROVETOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for ELM GROVE TOWNSHIP
shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

Elm Grove Township
September | September | September | September | September
1, 2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1, 2028 1,2029
Augu-st A, Augu-st 3, Augu-st 3, Augu-st A, Augu-st 3N,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

52

Page 26



TREMONT TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
TREMONT TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for TREMONT TOWNSHIP

shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

Tremont Township
September | September | September | September | September
1,2025 1,2026 1,2027 1,2028 1, 2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

53

Page 27



MACKINAW TOWNSHIP

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for
MACKINAW TOWNSHIP under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for MACKINAW
TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable as follows:

Mackinaw Township
September | September | September | September | September
1, 2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1, 2028 1, 2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

54

Page 28



(MULTI WEST) SAND PRARIE, DILLON, MALONE, DELEVAN MULTI TOWNSHIPS

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for (MULTI
WEST) SAND PRARIE, DILLON, MALONE, DELEVAN MULTI TOWNSHIPS TOWNSHIP under
this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for (MULTI WEST) SAND PRARIE, DILLON, MALONE,
DELEVAN MULTI TOWNSHIPS TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00 payable

as follows:
(Multi West) Sand Prairie, Dillon, Malone, Delavan Multi - Townships
September | September | September | September | September
1, 2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1, 2028 1, 2029
Augu-st 3, Augu-st A, Augu-st A, Augu-st A, Augu-st 3N,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

55

Page 29



(MULTI EAST) HOPEDALE, LITTLE MACKINAW, BOYTON. HITTLE MULTI TOWNSHIPS

September 1, 2025 - August 31, 2030: For services received by TAZEWELL COUNTY for (MULTI
EAST) HOPEDALE, LITTLE MACKINAW, BOYTON, HITTLE MULTI TOWNSHIPS TOWNSHIP
under this Agreement, TAZEWELL COUNTY for (MULTI EAST) HOPEDALE, LITTLE MACKINAW,
BOYTON, HITTLE MULTI TOWNSHIPS TOWNSHIP shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $5,545.00

payable as follows:

(Multi East) Hopedale, Little Mackinaw, Boynton, Hittle - Multi-Townships
September | September | September | September | September
1, 2025 1, 2026 1, 2027 1, 2028 1, 2029
Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31, Augu-st 31,
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
(1) Apex Sketch License | $655.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00 | $260.00
(1) Lead Tools-View $100.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Image License
CAMA Training $1,750.00 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
CAMA Support $0.00 $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00 | $500.00
2019 Cost Schedule Included | Included | Included | Included | Included
Total $2,505.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00 | $760.00

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

56

Page 30



7.1

7.2

7.3

ARTICLE 7: Ownership; Limited License Granted

Except as provided in Article 7.2 below, no licenses are granted hereunder. In no event shall title
to any software, equipment, or asset pass from DEVNET to TAZEWELL COUNTY, nor shall title to
any TAZEWELL Equipment or TAZEWELL Software or asset pass from TAZEWELL COUNTY to
DEVNET. DEVNET, shall have exclusive ownership and property rights in the DEVNET Appraisal
Software System, Documentation, Demonstration Program, DEVNET's TAZEWELL Training
Program, Data Screens, Interfaces and Marketing Literature.

DEVNET hereby grants TAZEWELL COUNTY a revocable, non-transferable, license to install, on
the TAZEWELL COUNTY Equipment, and use solely for TAZEWELL COUNTY’s internal business
purposes, the compiled application programs of the DEVNET Appraisal Software System. Except
as set forth herein, TAZEWELL COUNTY may not use, sublicense, distribute or dispose the
licensed portion of the DEVNET Appraisal Software System, or any modified forms thereof, in any
manner whatsoever. The license granted hereunder is subject further to the following additional
conditions: (i) the licensed software may not be installed on any equipment other than the
TAZEWELL COUNTY Equipment; (ii) the TAZEWELL COUNTY Equipment shall be located at all
times at the TAZEWELL COUNTY site; and (iii) authorized users of the licensed software may only
access and use the licensed software while onsite at the TAZEWELL COUNTY Site, and may not
access and use the licensed software from a remote location. TAZEWELL COUNTY will protect
against the disclosure of the DEVNET Appraisal Software System in accordance with Article 8
below. The license granted under this Article 7.2 will be immediately revoked in the event the
TAZEWELL COUNTY breaches any of these provisions. TAZEWELL COUNTY shall be allowed to
make one or more copies of this software for the sole purpose of routine system backup and
archival.

DEVNET shall own the copyright and have free and clear title to all Appraisal software developed
pursuant to this Agreement, including all extensions thereof.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 31
57



8.1

8.2

8.3

ARTICLE 8: Confidentiality and Nondisclosure

DEVNET and TAZEWELL COUNTY intend to disclose to each other information, which may
include confidential information in connection with this Agreement. The term “Confidential
Information" shall mean any information or data which is divulged by a Party to the other Party
under or in contemplation of this Agreement and which (a) if in tangible form or other media that
can be converted to readable form, is marked as proprietary, confidential or private when disclosed,
or (b) if oral or visual, is identified as proprietary, confidential, or private on disclosure and is
summarized in a writing so marked and delivered within ten (10) days following such disclosure.
Confidential Information may be either the property of the disclosing Party or information provided
to the disclosing Party by a “corporate affiliate” of the disclosing Party or by a third party. For
TAZEWELL COUNTY, “corporate affiliates” means governmental employees, agencies and
bodies, and all persons or entities employed or otherwise engaged thereby, provided that persons
or entities that are not governmental employees shall be required to execute appropriate
nondisclosure agreements before obtaining access to DEVNET’s Confidential Information.

The confidentiality and nondisclosure provisions set forth herein are intended to encompass the
corporate affiliates of the Parties. Consequently, affiliates of either Party may disclose Confidential
Information to the other Party or its affiliates, and affiliates of either Party may receive Confidential
Information from the other Party or its affiliates. The terms "disclosing Party" and Receiving Party
shall include affiliates of the Parties hereto with respect to Confidential Information disclosed or
received by the affiliates. The rights and obligations of the Parties shall inure to the benefit of their
respective corporate affiliates and may be directly enforced by such affiliates.

The receiving Party acknowledges value to the disclosing Party of all Confidential Information. With
respect to Confidential information, the recipient shall:

A. Use the Confidential Information only as required for this Agreement

B. Restrict disclosure of the Confidential Information solely to those employees of such Party and
its affiliates with a need to know and not dispose it to any other person or entity without the
prior written consent of the disposing Party;

C. Advise those employees who gain access to Confidential Information of their obligations with
respect to the Confidential Information; and

D. Make only the number of copies of the Confidential information necessary to disseminate the
Information to those employees who are entitled to have access to it, and ensure that all
confidentiality notices set forth on the Confidential Information are reproduced in full on such
copies.

For the purposes of this Article 8 only, “employees” includes third parties retained for temporary
administrative, Clerical or programming support. A need to know means that the employee requires
the Confidential Information in order to perform his or her responsibilities in connection with this
Agreement.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 32
58



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

The obligations of Article 8.3 above shall not apply to any Confidential Information that the recipient
can demonstrate:

A. Is or becomes available to the public through no breach of this Agreement;

B. Was previously known by the recipient without any obligation to hold in confidence;

C. Isreceived from a third party free to disclose such information without restriction;

D. Is independently developed by the recipient without the use of Confidential Information of the
disclosing Party;

E. Is approved for release by written authorization of the disposing Party, but only to the extent of

and subject to such conditions as may be imposed in such written authorization;

Is required by law or regulation to be disclosed, but only to the extent and for the purposes of

such required disclosure; or

G. Is disclosed in response to a valid order of a court and other governmental body of the United
States or any political subdivisions thereof, but only to the extent of and for the purposes of
such order; provided, however, that the recipient shall first notify divulging Party of the order
and permit the disclosing Party to seek an appropriate protective order.

m

Except where otherwise required by law or court order, Confidential information, including permitted
copies, shall be deemed the property of the disclosing Party. The recipient shall, within twenty (20)
days of a written request by the disclosing Party, return all Confidential information, including all
copies thereof, to the disposing Party or, if so directed by the disclosing Party, destroy all such
Confidential information.

Both Parties agree that an impending or existing violation of any provision of this Agreement would
cause the disclosing Party irreparable injury for which it would have no adequate remedy at law,
and that the disclosing Party shall be entitled to seek immediate injunctive relief prohibiting such
violation, in addition to any other rights and remedies available to it.

All obligations undertaken respecting Confidential information provided hereunder shall survive any
expiration or termination of this Agreement.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 33
59



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

ARTICLE 9: Warranty

DEVNET warrants that the DEVNET Appraisal Software System, for the term of this agreement,
when used under normal operating conditions, will function in material conformance with the
Documentation. TAZEWELL COUNTY's initial remedy for any failure of the DEVNET Appraisal
Software System to so function shall be to contact DEVNET and to have it remedy the failure to
function. If DEVNET cannot so remedy that failure within a reasonable time, TAZEWELL COUNTY
shall be permitted to secure its own reasonable remedy for that failure.

The warranties provided in this Agreement do not cover malfunctions or failure caused by:

TAZEWELL COUNTY’s modification or relocation of the TAZEWELL equipment or software,
unless mutually agreed upon in writing prior to each such modification or relocation.
TAZEWELL COUNTY's or any third party's abuse, misuse or negligence;

Power failure or surges, lightning, fire, flood, accident, and other events outside DEVNET’s
reasonable control;

TAZEWELL COUNTY's failure to fulfill its contractual obligations set forth in this Agreement;
and

E. Hardware, network or operating system failure.

© ow »

Except for the warranties expressly set forth above in this Article 9, DEVNET makes no other
warranties of any kind, express or implied, regarding the DEVNET Appraisal Software System, any
component thereof, any work to be performed by DEVNET hereunder, or otherwise with respect to
this Agreement, and all other warranties (including, but not limited to, any warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose) are expressly disclaimed and excluded, to the
maximum extent permissible by applicable law.

Client expressly acknowledges that systems made available or accessible on or through the
internet or other public networks cannot be guaranteed to be totally secure and that no security
measures are impenetrable. If, pursuant to this Agreement, client is licensing or otherwise being
provided by DEVNET with any program, product, or component that will be made available or
accessible on or through the internet or any other public network (e.g., DEVNET'S “wEdge"
product), client acknowledges that, as between the parties, client (and not DEVNET) is solely and
exclusively responsible for deploying, monitoring, and maintaining appropriate security measures,
systems, and infrastructure (e.g., firewalls) that reasonably and appropriately protect, and prevent
unauthorized access to, client’s systems, data, and other resources. Without limiting the provisions
of Article 9.3, DEVNET expressly does not represent, warrant, or covenant that any such DEVNET-
provided program, product, or component shall be available or accessible on a completely
uninterrupted or error-free basis. DEVNET shall not have any obligation or liability with respect to:
(I) inaccuracies, errors, or omissions in data or information provided by third parties or that arise in
the transmission of any data or information over the internet or other public networks; or (ll) security
breaches or incidents that result from causes not under the control of DEVNET.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 34
60



10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

ARTICLE 10: Indemnification

TAZEWELL COUNTY shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless DEVNET, its employees,
directors, and shareholders against all claims by third parties (including legal fees and expenses)
to the extent that such claims arise out of TAZEWELL COUNTY’s negligent acts or omissions under
this Agreement or failure to perform its obligations hereunder. TAZEWELL COUNTY shall promptly
notify DEVNET of any claim. TAZEWELL COUNTY shall fully cooperate with DEVNET in the
defense of said claim. This obligation to indemnify shall survive termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

DEVNET shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless TAZEWELL COUNTY, its employees and
agents against all claims by third parties (including legal fees and expenses) to the extent that such
claims arise out of DEVNET'S negligent acts or omissions under this Agreement or failure to
perform its obligations hereunder. DEVNET shall promptly notify TAZEWELL COUNTY of any
claim. DEVNET shall cooperate fully with TAZEWELL COUNTY in the defense of said claim. This
obligation to indemnify shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.

To the degree that TAZEWELL COUNTY provides software, databases and or documentation to
DEVNET under this Agreement or otherwise, TAZEWELL COUNTY warrants that it either owns or
has the right to grant DEVNET the usage rights to such software set forth in this Agreement.
TAZEWELL COUNTY shall indemnify and hold harmless DEVNET against and from all claims,
demands, suits, actions, judgments, losses, damages and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys fees) made against or incurred by DEVNET for infringement of any United States patent,
copyright, or trade secret of any third party arising from or relating to the use of software supplied
by TAZEWELL COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement. This indemnity and hold harmless obligation
shall not apply, however, to the degree that the alleged infringement arises from or relates to
modification of the software by DEVNET or by a third party retained by or under the control of
DEVNET.

TAZEWELL COUNTY shall be solely responsible for insuring that the software development
parameters provided to DEVNET by TAZEWELL COUNTY comply with all applicable laws, statutes
and ordinances. TAZEWELL hereby agrees to indemnify and hold DEVNET, its employees,
officers, directors and shareholders, harmless from any and all suits, claims, actions, causes of
action, losses, damages or other matters that in any way arise from, in whole or in part, the failure
or alleged failure of the DEVNET Appraisal Software System to conform to all applicable laws,
statutes and ordinances.

ARTICLE 11: Changes

DEVNET shall not perform any service or provide any deliverables not specified herein or act upon
any request for additions, deletions and/or changes (hereinafter “Changes") not specified in this
Agreement or amendment thereto without the prior written consent of TAZEWELL COUNTY. Such
written consent will be in the form of a Change Control Document. The costs for said services shall
be mutually agreed upon prior to the commencement of any such work or provision of any such
deliverables. This paragraph is subject to Paragraph 16.1: Notices.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 35
61



12.1

13.1

13.2

13.3

141

ARTICLE 12: Force Majeure

DEVNET shall not be liable in any way for any delay, failure, losses, damages or expenses due to
any of the following: any cause beyond DEVNET’s reasonable control, including but not limited to,
fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, unusually severe weather, manufacturer's delays,
strikes, embargoes, explosions, power blackouts, wars, labor disputes, acts of civil disobedience,
acts of Civil or military authorities, acts of nature, acts of public enemies, acts or omissions of
carriers or any court order connected with the Modification of Final Judgment, which may delay,
hinder, or prevent performance under this Agreement; provided that DEVNET has exercised
reasonable measures, if feasible, to mitigate such delay or failure.

ARTICLE 13: Termination

If either Party (hereinafter “Defaulting Party”) at any time neglects, fails, or refuses to perform under
any of the material provisions of this Agreement, then the other Party may serve upon the Defaulting
Party a Notice to Cure said neglect, failure or refusal to perform. The notice to cure shall specify
the alleged neglect, failure, or refusal and shall be served as provided for service of notices in
paragraph 16.1 herein. If, within fifteen (15) days of the date of service of such notice, the
Defaulting Party has not fully cured all the items indicated therein, or presented a plan acceptable
to the other Party to cure such items, then upon expiration of said fifteen (15) days, the other Party
may, at its option, elect to serve a Notice of Termination as provided in paragraph 13.2 herein
below.

In addition to termination pursuant to Article 5, if either Party (hereinafter “Defaulting Party”) at any
time neglects, fails, or refuses to perform under any of the material provisions of this Agreement
within thirty (30) days of service of the Notice to Cure provided in paragraph 13.1 hereinabove, then
the other Party may serve upon the Defaulting Party notice of its intention to terminate this
Agreement. The notice of termination shall specify the alleged neglect, failure, or refusal and shall
be served by registered mail. If, within thirty (30) days of the date of service of such notice, the
Defaulting Party has not fully cured all the Defaults indicated therein, or presented a plan
acceptable to the other Party to cure such Defaults, then upon expiration of said thirty (30) days,
the other Party may, at its option, elect to terminate this Agreement by providing the Defaulting
Party a second written notice. This paragraph is subject to Paragraph 16.1: Notices.

The right of either Party to terminate this Agreement shall not be affected by its failure to take action
with respect to any previous Default.

ARTICLE 14: Cooperative Purchasing

The provisions of this Contract will be extended to other municipal, county or state governmental
entities. Governmental entities wishing to use this Contract will be responsible for issuing their own
purchase documents/price agreements, providing for their own acceptance, and making any
subsequent payments. Vendor shall be required to include in any Contract entered into with another
agency or entity that is entered into as an extension of this Contract a Contract clause that will hold
harmless Tazewell County, IL from all claims, demands, actions or causes of actions of every kind
resulting directly or indirectly, arising out of, or in any way connected with the use of this contract.
Failure to do so will be considered a material breach of this Contract and grounds for Contract
termination. The cooperative entities are responsible for obtaining all certificates of insurance
required. The Vendor is responsible for providing each cooperative entity a copy of the Contract
upon request by the cooperative entity. Tazewell County, IL makes no guarantee of usage by other
users of this Contract.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 36
62



15.1

16.1

ARTICLE 15: Assignment

This Agreement is not assignable by either Party without the written consent of the other, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

ARTICLE 16: Miscellaneous

Notices

Except as otherwise provided for herein, any notice, communication or demand which under the
terms of this Agreement or under any statute must or may be given or made by either Party to the
other shall be in writing and shall reference this Agreement. Such notice shall be conveyed by
personal delivery, facsimile during business hours with hard copy to follow within 24 hours, or
certified, express, overnight or other mail service which provides proof of receipt, addressed to the
respective Parties at the following addresses:

To DEVNET:

To TAZEWELL County:

FONDULAC TOWNSHIP

WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP

PEKIN TOWNSHIP

GROVELAND TOWNSHIP

DEVNET, Inc.

2254 Oakland Drive
Sycamore, lllinois 60178
Facsimile: (815) 899-0020

TAZEWELL County Clerk
11 S. 4t St., Ste. 203
Pekin, IL 61554

Fondulac Township

Washington Township

Pekin Township

Groveland Township

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

63

Page 37



MORTON TOWNSHIP

SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP

CINCINNATI TOWNSHIP

ELM GROVE TOWNSHIP

TREMONT TOWNSHIP

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP

(MULTI WEST) SAND PRARIE, DILLON, MALONE, DELEVAN MULTI TOWNSHIPS

Morton Township

Spring Lake Township

Cincinnati Township

Elm Grove Township

Tremont Township

Mackinaw Township

(MULTI EAST) HOPEDALE, LITTLE MACKINAW, BOYTON, HITTLE MULTI TOWNSHIPS

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

64

Page 38



16.2

The date upon which such notice is so personally delivered, or, if the notice is given by said mail
service or facsimile the date which it is received by the addressee, shall be deemed to be the date
of such notice, irrespective of the date appearing thereon.

Independent Contractor

DEVNET and TAZEWELL COUNTY are acting hereunder as independent contractors and under
no circumstances shall any of the employees of one Party be deemed the employees of the other
for any purpose. This Agreement shall not be construed so as to constitute DEVNET and
TAZEWELL COUNTY as partners or joint venturers, or as authority for either Party to act for the
other Party in any agency or other capacity, or to make commitments of any kind for the account
of or on behalf of the other except to the extent and for the purposes provided for herein. DEVNET
certifies that it has purchased standard business insurance.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 39
65



16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

16.11

16.12

Hyperinflation

In the event of unusual and significant changes in the cost of providing software licenses per the
DEVNET Agreement during a given year due to hyperinflationary circumstances, the Parties may
agree in writing to adjust the pricing schedule per the DEVNET Agreement more frequently than
the term listed in the Agreement. Additionally, DEVNET reserves the right to terminate the contract
as a result of hyperinflation.

Governing Law
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of
lllinois.

Publicity

Neither Party may, without the other Party's prior written consent, publish or otherwise use
advertising, sales promotion materials, press releases or other publicity materials naming the
DEVNET Property Tax Software System except as otherwise set forth herein, or other matters
under this Agreement where the names, marks or services of the other Party are mentioned or
used.

Order of Precedence

In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions contained in the body of this Agreement
and those contained in an attachment to this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in the
body of this Agreement shall take precedence.

Severability

If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part
or provision of this Agreement.

Non-Waiver

Failure of either Party to insist in any instance upon strict performance by the other Party of any of
the provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed or deemed to be a waiver of such provision,
or any other provision hereof.

Exclusive Remedies
The remedies set forth in this Agreement shall be the Parties' sole and exclusive remedies, both in
contract and in tort, for each other's breach of this Agreement.

Compliance with Laws

Each Party shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations that pertain to its performance of
its obligations and exercise of its rights under this Agreement. Both parties shall conduct their
respective actions under this Agreement in such manner as to comply in all respects with the laws
of the United States of America, the State of lllinois, and any other State, Federal or Local agency
or unit of government that may legally control or direct the actions of either party. In the event any
provision of this Agreement shall now or at any time in the future be in conflict with any such law,
rule, ordinance, decision or other writing of any such governmental agency or unit of government,
then said provision shall be null and void and of no force and effect, and the remainder of this
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect as if said provision had not been included herein.

Binding Effect
This Agreement shall be binding on each Party's successors and assigns, upon signature.

Approvals

This Agreement shall not be binding upon DEVNET until it is approved and signed by the DEVNET
official authorized to sign this Agreement and all county officials and officers required by statute or
ordinance to execute it.

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 40
66


https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/hyperinflation

16.13 Survival

17.1

The provisions of paragraphs 7.2, 7.3, 8.1, 8.2, 8.3, 8.4, 8.5, 8.6, 8.7, 10.1 and 10.2 shall survive
the term of this Agreement, whether said termination is for cause or by expiration of time.

ARTICLE 17: Entire Agreement

This Agreement, including the Amendments attached hereto, if any, constitutes the entire
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all
previous proposals, negotiations, representations, commitments, documents and all other
communications between the Parties, both oral and written. It may not be released, discharged or
modified except by an instrument in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each of
the Parties. The terms of this Agreement shall prevail notwithstanding any variance with the terms
and conditions of any form document, such as a purchase order, submitted by either Party to the
other Party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date first set forth above.

TAZEWELL COUNTY ATTEST:

By:

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK

FONDULAC TOWNSHIP ATTEST:
By:
FONDULAC TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TOWNSHIP CLERK
WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP ATTEST:
By:

WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TOWNSHIP CLERK

PEKIN TOWNSHIP ATTEST:
By:
PEKIN TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TOWNSHIP CLERK
GROVELAND TOWNSHIP ATTEST:
By:

GROVELAND TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TOWNSHIP CLERK

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 41
67



MORTON TOWNSHIP

By:

MORTON TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP

By:

SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

CINCINNATI TOWNSHIP

By:

CINCINNATI TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

ELM GROVE TOWNSHIP

By:

ELM GROVE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

TREMONT TOWNSHIP

By:

TREMONT TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP

By:

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

(MULTI WEST) SAND PRARIE, DILLON,
MALONE, DELEVAN MULTI TOWNSHIPS

By:

(MULT!I WEST) SAND PRARIE, DILLON,

MALONE, DELEVAN MULTI TOWNSHIPS

DESIGNEE

(MULTI! EAST) HOPEDALE,
LITTLE MACKINAW, BOYTON,
HITTLE MULTI TOWNSHIPS

ATTEST:

TOWNSHIP CLERK

ATTEST:

TOWNSHIP CLERK

ATTEST:

TOWNSHIP CLERK

ATTEST:

TOWNSHIP CLERK

ATTEST:

TOWNSHIP CLERK

ATTEST:

TOWNSHIP CLERK

ATTEST:

CLERK DESIGNEE

ATTEST:

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL

68



By:

(MULTI EAST) HOPEDALE, CLERK DESIGNEE
LITTLE MACKINAW, BOYTON,
HITTLE MULTI TOWNSHIPS DESIGNEE

DEVNET, INC.

By:

Michael J. Gentry, President

DEVNET Inc. Township CAMA Contract for Tazewell County, IL Page 43
69



E-25-107
COMMITTEE REPORT
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:

Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends
that it be adopted by the Board:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the County's Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to approve
the purchase of services and goods necessary for the remediation of Legionella from the
Justice Center’s water system, as well as for the prevention of exposure to Legionella for
individuals working and residing within the facility; and

WHEREAS, the emergency need is the ability to remediate Legionella from the Justice
Center’s water system using services from a company specializing in Legionella
remediation; and

WHEREAS, until this process is complete, there is also a need to prevent individuals in the
Justice Center facility from exposure to Legionella which will require the purchase of
specialized water filters along with other goods, as well as the rental of temporary toilets
and wash stations; and

WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to
approve the emergency declaration under § 33.13 Miscellaneous Provisions of the
Tazewell County Code.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the
Sheriff's Office, the Finance Office, and the Auditor of this action.

PASSED THIS 29th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

70



Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Board
Mindy Darcy, Interim County Administrator

Tazewell County Board

October 14, 2025

Mr. John Ackerman
Tazewell County Clerk
Via hand delivery

Dear John:

I wish to declare an emergency under § 33.13 Miscellaneous Provisions of the Tazewell
County Code to proceed with the purchase of services and goods necessary for the
remediation of Legionella from the Justice Center's water system as well as for the
prevention of exposure to Legionella for individuals working and residing within the facility.

The emergency need is the ability to remediate Legionella from the Justice Center’s water
system using services from a company specializing in Legionella remediation. Until this
process is complete, there is also a need to prevent exposure to Legionella for individuals in
the Justice Center facility which will require the purchase of specialized water filters and
other goods as well as the rental of temporary toilets, showers, and hand-washing stations.

Per the requirement § 33.13 the Board will consider a resolution approving this action at
the October 29, 2025 meeting.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
Brett Grimm OCT 14 205
County Board Chairman

f’ I e e

/ COUNTY CLERK

copy to: County Board Members TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Bill Funkhouser, Auditor
Hannah Clark, Treasurer

71
11 South 4™ Street, Suite 432, Pekin, Illinois 61554 Phone (309) 477-2272



E-25-96
REAPPOINTMENT

I, Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Tazewell County (Illinois) Board, hereby reappoint
Alisha Dault, 551 S. 14t Street, Pekin, IL to the Human Services Transportation
Planning Commission for a term commencing December 1, 2025 and expiring
November 30, 2028.

COMMITTEE REPORT

TO: Tazewell County Board
FROM: Executive Committee

This Committee has reviewed the reappointment of Alisha Dault to the Human Services
Transportation Planning Commission and we recommend said reappointment be
approved.

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the reappointment of Alisha Dault to the
Human Services Transportation Planning Commission.

The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will
notify TCRPC, 456 Fulton, Suite 401, Peoria, IL 61602.

PASSED THIS 29t DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

72



E-25-97

APPOINTMENT

I, Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Tazewell County (Illinois) Board, hereby appoint Matthew
Weller, who is employed by Tazewell & Peoria Railroad, 101 Wesley Road, Creve Coeur, IL
to the East Peoria Drainage and Levee District for a term commencing September 06,
2025 and expiring September 05, 2028.

COMMITTEE REPORT

TO: Tazewell County Board
FROM: Executive Committee

This Committee has reviewed the reappointment of Matthew Weller to the East Peoria
Drainage and Levee District and we recommend said appointment be approved.

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the appointment of Matthew Weller to the
East Peoria Drainage and Levee District.

The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will
notify Attorney James Bradshaw of this action.

PASSED THIS 29t DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

73



E-25-101
REAPPOINTMENT

I, Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Tazewell County (lllinois) Board, hereby reappoint
Aaron Birky of 7500 Sparrow Road, Hopedale, IL 61747 to the Hopedale Fire Protection
District for a term commencing December 01, 2025 and expiring November 30, 2028.

COMMITTEE REPORT

TO: Tazewell County Board
FROM: Executive Committee

This Committee has reviewed the reappointment of Aaron Birky to the
Hopedale Fire Protection District and we recommend said reappointment be approved.

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the reappointment of Aaron Birky to the
Hopedale Fire Protection District.

The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will
notify McGrath Law Office of this action.

PASSED THIS 29t DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

74



E-25-108

REAPPOINTMENT

I, Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Tazewell County (lllinois) Board, hereby reappoint
Cathryn Stump, 1233 Wheatfield Drive, Morton, IL to the Persons with Developmental
Disabilities Board for a term commencing December 1, 2025 and expiring November 30,
2028.

COMMITTEE REPORT

TO: Tazewell County Board
FROM: Executive Committee

This Committee has reviewed the reappointment of Cathryn Stump to the Persons with
Developmental Disabilities Board and we recommend said reappointment be approved.

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the reappointment of Cathryn Stump to the
Persons with Developmental Disabilities Board.

The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and the County Board Office will
notify the Tazewell County Resource Center of this action.

PASSED THIS 29" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

75



E-25-109

REAPPOINTMENT

I, Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Tazewell County (Illinois) Board, hereby reappoint
Angie Lapsley of 105 Berry, Green Valley, IL to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a term
commencing December 01, 2025 and expiring November 30, 2030.

COMMITTEE REPORT

TO: Tazewell County Board
FROM: Executive Committee

This Committee has reviewed the reappointment of Angie Lapsley to the Zoning Board of
Appeals and we recommend said reappointment be approved.

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL

The Tazewell County Board hereby approves the reappointment of Angie Lapsley to the
Zoning Board of Appeals.

The County Clerk shall notify the County Board Office and Community Development of this
action.

PASSED THIS 29t DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

ATTEST:

Tazewell County Clerk Tazewell County Board Chairman

76





